
 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

SEPTEMBER 3, 2019 - 7:00 P.M. 

(810) 629-8631 

 

CALL TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – 7:00 P.M. 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – OR CHANGES 

 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA  

Regular Board Meeting Minutes – August 20, 2019 

Clerk’s Warrants and Bills 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

 1. Fire Service Report, August 29, 2019 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Presentation of the township's 2018-2019 audit. 

2. Gruber land division request. 

3. ZBA appointments. 

4. Assessing training. 

5. Irish Hills Road SAD budget amendment. 

6. Request for the Treasurer to attend the MMTA conference. 

7.  Discussion on the Hartland School bus stop at 8420 Runyan Lake Road. 

8. Closed session to discuss attorney communication. 

9. Real estate consultant. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 

 

Supervisor Mike Cunningham             Clerk Marcella Husted 

 
Please note: The Public Remarks section appears twice on the agenda - once after Communications and once before 

Adjournment.  Anyone wishing to address the Township Board may do so at these times. The Tyrone Township 

Board of Trustees has established a policy limiting the time a person may address the Township Board at a regular 

or at a special meeting during the Public Remarks section of the agenda to three minutes. The Board reserves the 

right to place an issue under the New Business section of the agenda if additional discussion is warranted or to 

respond later either verbally or in writing through an appropriately appointed Township Official. - Individuals with 

disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Tyrone Township Clerk at (810) 629-8631 at least 

seven days prior to the meeting. 
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TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – AUGUST 20, 2019 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Supervisor Cunningham called the meeting of the Tyrone Township Board to order with the 

Pledge of Allegiance on August 20, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. at the Tyrone Township Hall. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Supervisor Mike Cunningham, Treasurer Jennifer Eden, Clerk Marcella Husted, 

Trustees Kurt Schulze, Chuck Schultz, and Soren Pedersen.  Absent: Trustee David Walker. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING  

Supervisor Cunningham opened the public hearing at 7:00 pm. The purpose of the public 

hearing was to explain and answer questions pertaining to the Roll and to hear objections to the 

Roll for the Laurel Springs Waste Removal Project. No comments or objections were made; no 

letters of objection were received.  The Supervisor closed the public hearing and reopened the 

regular meeting at 7:00 p.m. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – OR CHANGES 

Trustee Schultz moved to approve the agenda as presented.  (Treasurer Eden seconded.)  The 

motion carried; all ayes.  

 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

 Regular Board Meeting Minutes – August 6, 2019 

 Treasurer's Report 

Clerk’s Warrants and Bills 

 

Trustee Schultz moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.  (Trustee Pedersen 

seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

1. AT&T Michigan Annual Video Report, August 9, 2019 

2. Planning Commission Meeting Synopsis, August 13, 2019 

3. Planning Commission Approved Meeting Minutes, June 11, 2019 

 

Trustee Schultz moved to receive and place on file Communications 1-3 as presented. (Treasurer 

Eden seconded.)  The motion carried 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS 

None. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None. 
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NEW BUSINESS 

1.  Resolution to confirm the Laurel Springs Waste Removal Special Assessment 

Roll. 

 

RESOLUTION #190805 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

LAUREL SPRINGS SUBDIVISION 

WASTE REMOVAL PROJECT (2019) 

 

CONFIRMING SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL 

 

WHEREAS, the Township Board has taken the necessary actions under Act No. 188, Public 

Acts of Michigan, 1954, as amended (“Act 188”) for establishing a single waste hauler for the 

collection and disposal of garbage and rubbish within the Township’s Laurel Springs (the 

“Project”), and for the establishment of the Tyrone Township Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste 

Removal Project (2019) Special Assessment District (the “Special Assessment District”); 

WHEREAS, the Township Board has determined that it is necessary to cause special 

assessments to be levied against the lands especially benefited by the Project to pay for the costs 

of the Project; 

WHEREAS, the Township Board has directed the Township Supervisor to prepare a proposed 

special assessment roll (the “Special Assessment Roll”) against the lands especially benefited by 

the Project; 

WHEREAS, the Township Supervisor has prepared the Special Assessment Roll and has filed 

the Special Assessment Roll with the Township Clerk; 

WHEREAS, the Township Board has scheduled a public hearing on the Proposed Roll and 

notice of the hearing has been properly provided; 

WHEREAS, the Township Board conducted the public hearing on the Proposed Roll on August 

20, 2019. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. Roll Confirmed.  In accordance with Act No. 188 and the laws of the State of Michigan, 

the Township Board hereby confirms the special assessment roll for the Tyrone Township Laurel 

Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project (2019) (the “Roll”). 

2. The Assessments in the district shall be as follows:  Any parcel with a residential 

structure shall be assessed $233.00 in the first year to include legal and administrative costs; 

$173.00 in the second year with 3% increases in each year thereafter.  Assessments will be for 

ten (10) years beginning in 2019 and continuing through 2028.  Vacant parcels shall be assessed 

at $0.00 until such time as an occupancy permit for a structure requiring waste removal is issued 

to that vacant parcel.   
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3. Future Installments - Principal.  The Township Board determines that each special 

assessment may be paid in annual installments.  Each installment shall be billed on December 1 

and shall be due annually on February 28
th

 until 2029 at intervals 12 months from the due date of 

the first installment. 

4. Future Installments - Interest.  All unpaid installments shall bear interest, payable 

annually on each installment due date, at a rate of eight percent (8%) per annum.  Interest on 

such unpaid installments shall accrue from its due date. 

5. Warrant.  The Township Clerk is hereby directed to attach a warrant (in the form of 

Exhibit B to this resolution) to the Roll and to deliver such warrant and the Roll to the Township 

Treasurer, who shall thereupon collect the special assessments in accordance with the terms of 

this resolution, the Clerk’s warrant and the statutes of the State of Michigan. 

6. Inconsistent Prior Resolutions.  All previously adopted resolutions that are in conflict 

with this resolution are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

RESOLVED BY: Trustee Schultz 

SUPPORTED BY:  Treasurer Eden 

 

VOTE:  Schultz, yes; Eden, yes; Cunningham, yes; Schulze, yes; Pedersen, yes; Husted, yes; 

Walker, absent. 

 

ADOPTION DATE:  August 20, 2019 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on August 20, 2019, at 

which meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file 

in the records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

 

Marcella Husted 

Tyrone Township Clerk 
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____________________________________________ 

Exhibit A 

Description of the Project 

____________________________________________ 

 

The project (the “Project”) will consist of the establishment of a single waste hauler for the 

collection and disposal of garbage and rubbish along the following streets in the Laurel Springs 

Subdivision in Tyrone Township:  Dentonview Dr., Laurel Springs Blvd., Overlook Dr., and 

12231 and 12245 White Lake Rd. 

____________________________________________ 

Exhibit B 

Warrant 

____________________________________________ 

 

WARRANT 

 

TO: Treasurer 

Tyrone Township 

Livingston County, Michigan 

I certify that attached to this Warrant is a true copy of the special assessment roll for the Tyrone 

Township Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project (2019) confirmed by the 

Township Board August 20, 2019 (the “Confirming Resolution”).  You are hereby directed to 

proceed to collect the amounts due on such roll in accordance with this Warrant, the Confirming 

Resolution and the statutes of the State of Michigan. 

____________________________ 

Marcella Husted, Clerk 

 

 

2.  Regulatory Ordinance #49-Residential Outdoor Lighting. 

 

RESOLUTION #190806 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

RESIDENTIAL OUTDOOR LIGHTING ORDINANCE NO. 49 

 

An ordinance enacted pursuant to the authority of Act 246 of the public Acts of 1945, as amended, 

to establish regulations and specifications for the use and installation of residential outdoor lighting 

in Tyrone Township; to prevent light-related nuisances in the Township; to preserve, promote and 

protect the health, safety and general welfare of the persons and property within the Township; to 

provide for the enforcement hereof; and to provide penalties for the violation hereof. 

 

***See original resolution for text of ordinance.*** 
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* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

RESOLVED BY:  Trustee Schultz 

SUPPORTED BY:  Trustee Pedersen 

 

VOTE: Schultz, yes; Schulze, yes; Pedersen, yes; Eden, yes; Cunningham, yes; Husted, yes; 

Walker, absent. 

 

ADOPTION DATE: August 20, 2019 

 

PUBLICATION DATE:  August 25, 2019 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE: September 24, 2019 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on August 20, 2019, at 

which meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file 

in the records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

 

Marcella Husted 

Tyrone Township Clerk 

 

3. Regulatory Ordinance #50-Land Division. 

 

RESOLUTION #190807 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

LAND DIVISION ORDINANCE NO. 50 

 

An ordinance to regulate partitioning or division of real property inclusive of parcels, platted 

lots, condominium units, or tracts of land, as permitted by law, enacted pursuant but not limited 

to the State Land Division Act, being Michigan Public Act 288 of 1967, as amended, the 

Condominium Act, being Michigan Public Act 59 of 1978, as amended, Michigan Public Act 

591 of 1996, as amended, and Michigan Public Act 246 of 1945, as amended; to provide a 

procedure therefore; to repeal any ordinance or provision thereof in conflict herewith; and to 

prescribe penalties and enforcement remedies for the violation of this Ordinance.  
 

***See original resolution for text of ordinance.*** 
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* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

RESOLVED BY:  Trustee Schultz 

SUPPORTED BY:  Clerk Husted 

 

VOTE: Pedersen, yes; Schulze, yes; Schultz, yes; Eden, yes; Cunningham, yes; Husted, yes; 

Walker, absent. 

 

ADOPTION DATE:  August 20, 2019 

 

PUBLICATION DATE: August 25, 2019 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE: September 24, 2019 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on August 20, 2019, at 

which meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file 

in the records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

 

Marcella Husted 

Tyrone Township Clerk 

 

 

4. Planning Commission appointments. 

 

Trustee Pedersen moved to confirm the Supervisor's appointment of Dan Stickel to the Planning 

Commission for a three year term. The term expires August 31, 2022. (Trustee Schultz 

seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes. 

 

Trustee Pedersen moved to confirm the Supervisor's reappointment of Richard Erickson to the 

Planning Commission for a three year term.  The term expires August 31, 2022.  (Trustee 

Schultz seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes. 

 

5. Appoint ex-officio to the Planning Commission. 

 

Trustee Schultz moved to appoint Trustee Kurt Schulze to serve as the ex-officio member of the 

Planning Commission.  (Treasurer Eden seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes. 
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6. Traffic attorney contract. 

 

Trustee Schultz moved to approve the one year contract for traffic prosecution services with 

Rosati, Schultz, Joppich, Amtsbuechler.  (Treasurer Eden seconded.)  The motion carried; all 

ayes. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

None. 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS 

None.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Trustee Pedersen moved to adjourn.  (Treasurer Eden seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes.  

The meeting adjourned at 7:38 p.m.   



CHECK REGISTER FOR TYRONE TOWNSHIP 1/2Page: 08/29/2019 10:12 AM
User: MHUSTED
DB: Tyrone

CHECK DATE FROM 08/15/2019 - 08/29/2019

AmountDescriptionVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 001 STATE BANK COMMON ACCOUNT

5,901.42 HEALTH INSURANCE SEPT. 2019BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN2198400108/20/2019
172.65 POSTAGE METER LEASE 6.10.19 TO 9.9.19PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL2198500108/20/2019

3,987.00 NEW BUILDING RENOVATIONSSPICER GROUP2198600108/20/2019
383.66 POSTAGE, ELECTION FOOD, CLERK OFFICE SUPCHASE CARD SERVICE2198700108/28/2019
349.26 SERVER BATTERY BACKUP & SURGEI.T. RIGHT, INC.2198800108/28/2019

266,640.16 DENTON HILL RD REPAIRLIVINGSTON COUNTY ROAD COMMISS2198900108/28/2019
2,250.60 LIQUOR LICENSE FEES RECD FROM STATELIVINGSTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT2199000108/28/2019

286.19 AP CHECKS TRUST & AGENCYPRINTING SYSTEMS, INC.2199100108/28/2019
286.19 AP CHECKS TAX COLLECTION FUND

572.38 

825.00 OFFICE CLEANING AUG. 2019RITTER'S CLEANING SERVICE2199200108/28/2019
1,195.00 AUGUST 2019 EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONSVOYA INSTITUTIONAL TRUST COMPANY2199300108/28/2019

50.00 TREASURER TRAININGWASHTENAW ASSESSORS ASSOCIATION2199400108/28/2019

001 TOTALS:

282,327.13 Total of 11 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
282,327.13 Total of 11 Checks:

Bank 022 STATE BANK - PUBLIC SAFETY checking

12,771.00 9 FIRE RUNS JULY 16-31HARTLAND AREA FIRE DEPARTMENT115102208/20/2019

022 TOTALS:

12,771.00 Total of 1 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
12,771.00 Total of 1 Checks:

Bank 101 FLAGSTAR-SEWER DEBT-CKG

9,449.35 LAKE TYRONE SEWER BOND INTERESTLIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER117610108/20/2019

101 TOTALS:

9,449.35 Total of 1 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
9,449.35 Total of 1 Checks:

Bank 102 SEWER O&M CHECKING 590

13,697.88 UB BILLING DONE JULY 2019 DUE GEN FUNDTYRONE TOWNSHIP40310208/28/2019
54,606.17 UB BILLING DONE AUG 2019 DUE SEWER DEBT

68,304.05 

102 TOTALS:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
68,304.05 Total of 1 Checks:



CHECK REGISTER FOR TYRONE TOWNSHIP 2/2Page: 08/29/2019 10:12 AM
User: MHUSTED
DB: Tyrone

CHECK DATE FROM 08/15/2019 - 08/29/2019

AmountDescriptionVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

68,304.05 Total of 1 Disbursements:

Bank 108 TAX FUND FLAGSTAR 

31,222.38 S2019 TAX RECD 8.1.19 TO 8.15.19FENTON SCHOOLS261010808/20/2019

17.51 IFT S2019 TAX RECD 8.1.19 TO 8.15.19GISD261110808/20/2019
25,527.82 S2019 TAX RECD 8.1.19 TO 8.15.19

25,545.33 

6,050.65 S2019 TAX RECD 8.1.19 TO 8.15.19HARTLAND CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS261210808/20/2019

215.33 IFT S2019 TAX RECD 8.1.19 TO 8.15.19LINDEN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS261310808/20/2019
56,196.09 S2019 TAX RECD 8.1.19 TO 8.15.19

56,411.42 

281.26 IFT S2019 TAX RECD 8.1.19 TO 8.15.19LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER261410808/20/2019
341,727.35 S2019 TAX RECD 8.1.19 TO 8.15.19

342,008.61 

142.71 IFT S2019 TAX RECD 8.1.19 TO 8.15.19STATE OF MICHIGAN261510808/20/2019
252.86 2019 Sum Tax Refund 4704-09-402-056THE STATE BANK261610808/20/2019
919.88 2019 Sum Tax Refund 4704-09-402-010THE STATE BANK261710808/20/2019

6.55 IFT S2019 TAX RECD 8.1.19 TO 8.15.19TYRONE TOWNSHIP261810808/20/2019
10,229.92 S2019 TAX RECD 8/1/19 TO 8/15/19LESA261910808/27/2019

338,007.80 S2019 TAX DISBURSEMENT 8.16.19 TO 8.27.1FENTON SCHOOLS262010808/28/2019
82,848.48 S2019 TAX DISBURSEMENT 8.16.19 TO 8.27.1GISD262110808/28/2019

245,101.43 S2019 TAX DISBURSEMENT 8.16.19 TO 8.27.1HARTLAND CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS262210808/28/2019
55,027.02 S2019 TAX DISBURSEMENT 8.16.19 TO 8.27.1LESA262310808/28/2019
22,393.26 S2019 TAX DISBURSEMENT 8.16.19 TO 8.27.1LINDEN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS262410808/28/2019

492,985.34 S2019 TAX DISBURSEMENT 8.16.19 TO 8.27.1LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER262510808/28/2019

108 TOTALS:

1,709,153.64 Total of 16 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
1,709,153.64 Total of 16 Checks:

Bank 112 FLAGSTAR CHECKING - SA ROAD IMPROVEMENTS

5,589.75 IRISH HILLS ROAD IMPROVEMENTS SADSPICER GROUP103511208/20/2019

112 TOTALS:

5,589.75 Total of 1 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
5,589.75 Total of 1 Checks:

REPORT TOTALS:

2,087,594.92 Total of 31 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
2,087,594.92 Total of 31 Checks:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the Township Board 

Tyrone Township, Livingston County, Michigan 

 

Report on the Financial Statements 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 

business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 

Township of Tyrone, Livingston County, Michigan, (the “Township”) as of and for the year ended 

March 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 

Township’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 

of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 

relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express 

no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 

and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 

the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 

major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township as of March 31, 2019, 

and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the 

year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 

of America. 

 

Other Matters 

 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 

management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to 

supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 

financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 

it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 

appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 

procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 

generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 

about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 

with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 

we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 

provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 

sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

Other Information 

 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 

collectively comprise the Township’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual 

fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required 

part of the basic financial statements. 
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The combining and individual fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and 

were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 

prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 

procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 

including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 

other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 

accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund 

financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 

statements as a whole. 

 

 
Gabridge & Company, PLC 

Grand Rapids, MI 

August 5, 2019 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

As management of the Township of Tyrone, Livingston County, Michigan (the “Township” or 

“government”) we offer readers of the Township’s financial statements this narrative overview 

and analysis of the financial activities of the Township for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019. 

We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the financial 

statements. 

 

Financial Highlights 

 

 The assets and deferred outflows of the Township exceeded its liabilities and deferred 

inflows at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $19,323,497 (net position). Of this 

amount, $8,301,432 represents unrestricted net position, which may be used to meet the 

government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

 

 At the close of the current fiscal year, the Township’s governmental funds reported 

combined fund balances of $9,374,149, an increase of $1,074,197 in comparison with the 

prior year. Approximately 22.4% of this amount, or 2,101,496, is available for spending at 

the government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance). 

 

 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was 

$2,103,020, or approximately 185.8% of annual general fund expenditures. 

 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

 

The discussion and analysis provided here is intended to serve as an introduction to the Township’s 

basic financial statements. The Township’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 

1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial 

statements. This report also includes supplementary information intended to furnish additional 

detail to support the basic financial statements themselves. 

 

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are 

designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Township’s finances, in a manner similar 

to a private-sector business.  

 

The statement of net position presents financial information on all of the Township’s assets, 

deferred inflows / outflows, and liabilities, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, 

increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 

position of the Township is improving or deteriorating.  

 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Township’s net position changed 

during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 

event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, 

revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will only result in cash flows in future 

fiscal periods (e.g., unavailable revenues, accrued interest, and long-term debt). 
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Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Township that are 

principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from 

other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user 

fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the Township include 

general government, police and fire protection, roads, health and welfare, community and 

economic development, and culture. The business-type activities of the Township include the 

sewage disposal system. 

 

Fund Financial Statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 

control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The 

Township, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 

compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Township can be 

divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

 

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 

reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike 

the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-

term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources 

available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in assessing a government’s 

near-term financing requirements. 

 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 

statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 

information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  

By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term 

financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 

statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 

facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

 

The Township maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented 

separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of 

revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, public safety fund, and 

the lake shannon road improvement fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the 

other governmental funds is presented as a separate column as they are considered nonmajor funds.  

 

The Township adopts an annual appropriated budget for the general fund and each special revenue 

fund. A budgetary comparison schedule for the general fund and each major special revenue fund 

has been provided to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. 

 

Proprietary Funds - The Township maintains one type of proprietary fund, an enterprise fund. 

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 

government-wide financial statements. The Township uses an enterprises fund to account for its 

sewer operations.  

 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 

statements, only in more detail.  
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Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 

outside of the government. Fiduciary funds are not reported in the government-wide financial 

statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Township’s own 

programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.  

The Township reports one type of fiduciary fund, which is an agency fund. 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is necessary 

to acquire a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial 

statements.  

 

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 

report also presents required supplementary information concerning the Township’s budgetary 

comparison schedules. 

 

This report also presents other supplementary information which includes the combining and 

individual fund statements. The combining statements are presented immediately following the 

required supplementary information on budgets.  

 

Government-wide Overall Financial Analysis 

 

As noted earlier, net position over time may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 

position. In the case of the Township, assets plus deferred outflows exceeded liabilities plus 

deferred inflows by $19,323,497 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 

 

A significant portion of the Township’s net position, $5,577,036, or 28.9% of its total net position, 

reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and 

infrastructure), less any related outstanding debt that was used to acquire those assets. The 

Township uses these capital assets to provide a variety of services to its citizens. Accordingly, 

these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Township’s investment in capital 

assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources used to repay this debt 

must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate 

these liabilities. 

 

An additional portion of the Township’s net position, $5,445,029, or 28.1% of its total net position, 

represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The 

remaining balance of $8,301,432, or 43.0% of its total net position, is unrestricted and may be used 

to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors. 

 

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments increased significantly during the year, from $10,153,006 

as of March 31, 2018 to $11,239,722 as of March 31, 2019.  This increase of $1,086,716 is strongly 

correlated to the overall increase in net position of $729,513 that the Township reported during 

2018.  Other significant factors that led to the increase in cash and investments include collections 

of special assessment receivables (increasing business-type activities cash by $549,520) and the 

related payments on long-term debt (decreasing governmental and business-type activities cash by 

$882,260) along with non-cash depreciation expense (effectively “increasing” cash across 

governmental and business-type activities by $534,828).  
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Following is a comparative schedule showing the Township’s assets, deferred inflows and 

outflows, liabilities, and net position for each of the two past fiscal years: 

 

 
 

The Township’s overall net position increased $729,513 from the prior fiscal year. The reasons for 

this overall increase are discussed in the following sections for governmental activities and 

business-type activities. 

 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,162,264$    6,096,760$    444,449$      476,231$      7,606,713$    6,572,991$    

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted -                  -                  1,090,928      1,106,040      1,090,928      1,106,040      

Investments 185,651        183,122        277,795        276,331        463,446        459,453        

Receivables 348,238        332,865        264,991        242,280        613,229        575,145        

Special Assessment Receivables 114,061        16,666          522,195        527,332        636,256        543,998        

Prepaid Expenses 10,836          7,448            -                  -                  10,836          7,448            

Due from Agency Fund 4,071            -                  -                  -                  4,071            -                  

Total Current Assets 7,825,121      6,636,861      2,600,358      2,628,214      10,425,479    9,265,075      

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets not being Depreciated 26,472          -                  17,595          17,595          44,067          17,595          

Capital Assets being Depreciated 121,279        128,554        12,263,446    12,783,878    12,384,725    12,912,432    

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted -                  -                  99,970          39,522          99,970          39,522          

Land Contracts Receivable 108,812        119,664        -                  -                  108,812        119,664        

Cash Held by Agent -                  -                  1,027            1,027            1,027            1,027            

Investments - Restricted -                  -                  1,978,665      1,975,000      1,978,665      1,975,000      

Special Assessment Receivables 1,009,372      254,223        2,533,910      3,078,293      3,543,282      3,332,516      

Total Assets 9,091,056      7,139,302      19,494,971    20,523,529    28,586,027    27,662,831    

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Charge on Refunding -                  -                  258,521        291,255        258,521        291,255        

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources -                  -                  258,521        291,255        258,521        291,255        

LIABILIITES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 114,104        119,576        59,045          61,431          173,149        181,007        

Accrued Liabilities and Other 6,473            5,053            -                  -                  6,473            5,053            

Accrued Interest 12,794          4,454            102,978        113,902        115,772        118,356        

Current Portion of Long-term Debt 90,000          20,000          879,330        862,260        969,330        882,260        

Internal Balances (6,188)          (6,046)          6,188            6,046            -                  -                  

Total Current Liabilities 217,183        143,037        1,047,541      1,043,639      1,264,724      1,186,676      

Noncurrent Liabilities

Long-term Debt 1,348,433      375,000        6,231,974      7,138,125      7,580,407      7,513,125      

Advances from Other Funds (2,550,000)    (2,550,000)    2,550,000      2,550,000      -                  -                  

Total Liabilities (984,384)       (2,031,963)    9,829,515      10,731,764    8,845,131      8,699,801      

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Assessments Levied for Subsequent Periods 675,920        660,301        -                  -                  675,920        660,301        

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 675,920        660,301        -                  -                  675,920        660,301        

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 147,751        128,554        5,429,285      5,093,370      5,577,036      5,221,924      

Restricted 1,721,333      1,680,595      3,723,696      3,213,763      5,445,029      4,894,358      

Unrestricted 7,530,436      6,701,815      770,996        1,775,887      8,301,432      8,477,702      

  Total Net Position 9,399,520$    8,510,964$    9,923,977$    10,083,020$  19,323,497$  18,593,984$  

Business-typeGovernmental Total Primary

Activities Activities Government
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Governmental Activities - Governmental activities increased the Township’s net position by 

$888,556. The Township recognized significantly more charges for services during 2019 

compared to 2018 largely as a result of a receiving more special assessments for road 

improvements. 

 

Public works expenses increased as a result of increased road improvement projects. The overall 

increase in public works expenses was $1,204,459 within governmental activities during 2019. 

 

  

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Revenue

Program Revenues

Charges for Services 2,327,724$    937,227$       1,084,532$    913,107$       3,412,256$    1,850,334$    

Capital Grants and Contributions -                  -                  168,897        214,825        168,897        214,825        

Total Program Revenues 2,327,724      937,227        1,253,429      1,127,932      3,581,153      2,065,159      

General Revenues

Property Taxes 445,624        443,809        -                  -                  445,624        443,809        

State Revenue 888,208        850,976        -                  -                  888,208        850,976        

Cable Franchise Fees 198,496        195,788        -                  -                  198,496        195,788        

Interest 63,109          29,110          34,521          50,893          97,630          80,003          

Total General Revenues 1,595,437      1,519,683      34,521          50,893          1,629,958      1,570,576      

Total Revenues 3,923,161      2,456,910      1,287,950      1,178,825      5,211,111      3,635,735      

Expenses

General Government 633,348        597,239        -                  -                  633,348        597,239        

Public Safety 597,663        606,246        -                  -                  597,663        606,246        

Public Works 1,493,711      289,252        1,446,993      1,414,969      2,940,704      1,704,221      

Community and Economic Development 104,196        82,508          -                  -                  104,196        82,508          

Health and Welfare 4,400            4,371            -                  -                  4,400            4,371            

Culture 36,719          38,662          -                  -                  36,719          38,662          

Other Functions 122,852        87,217          -                  -                  122,852        87,217          

Interest on Long-term Debt 41,716          18,215          -                  -                  41,716          18,215          

Total Expenses 3,034,605      1,723,710      1,446,993      1,414,969      4,481,598      3,138,679      

Change in Net Position 888,556        733,200        (159,043)       (236,144)       729,513        497,056        

Net Position at Beginning of Period 8,510,964      7,777,764      10,083,020    10,319,164    18,593,984    18,096,928    

Net Position at End of Period 9,399,520$    8,510,964$    9,923,977$    10,083,020$  19,323,497$  18,593,984$  

Activities Activities Government

Governmental Business-type Total
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Governmental Activities 

 

The following chart summarizes the revenue sources for the governmental activities of the 

Township for the most recent fiscal year-end. 

 

 
The following chart summarizes the expenses for the governmental activities of the Township for 

the most recent fiscal year-end. 

 

 
  

Charges for 

Services

59%
Property Taxes

11%

State Revenue

23%

Other

7%

Governmental Activities Revenues

General 

Government

21%
Public Safety

20%

Public Works

49%

Other

10%

Governmental Activities Expenses
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Business-type Activities - Business-type activities decreased the Township’s net position by 

$159,043 during fiscal year 2019.  The decrease in net position is consistent with the prior year.  

 

Financial Analysis of Governmental Funds 

 

As noted earlier, the Township uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 

finance-related legal requirements.  

 

Governmental Funds - The focus of the Township’s governmental funds is to provide information 

on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful 

in assessing the Township’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may 

serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for discretionary use as they 

represent the portion of fund balance which has not yet been limited to use for a particular purpose 

by either an external party, the Township itself, or a group or individual that has been delegated 

authority to assign resources for use for particular purposes by the Township’s Board. 

 

At March 31, 2019, the Township’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of 

$9,374,149, an increase of $1,074,197 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 22.4% of 

this amount, $2,101,496, constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at 

the government’s discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is either nonspendable, restricted, 

committed, or assigned to indicate that it is: 1) nonspendable advance from the general fund to the 

sewer fund and prepaid items; $2,560,836 (27.3%), 2) restricted for police/sheriff, fire and EMS, 

public education grant, and other service related assessments; $1,721,333 (18.4%), 3) committed 

for capital outlay expenditures; $500,000 (5.3%), or 4) assigned for capital improvement projects, 

technology upgrades, and park and recreation expenditures; $2,490,484 (26.6%). 

 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Township. At the end of the current fiscal year, 

unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $2,103,020 while total fund balance increased by 

$671,136 to $7,652,741. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare 

both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total general fund expenditures. 

Unassigned fund balance represents approximately 185.8% of total general fund expenditures 

while total fund balance represents approximately 676.0% of that same amount. Both revenues 

and expenditures remained consistent when compared to the prior year. 

 

The public safety fund, a major fund, had a $68,891 increase in fund balance during the current 

fiscal year, which compares to an increase of $68,864 in 2018. Both revenues and expenditures 

remained consistent when compared to the prior year. 

 

The lake shannon road improvement capital projects fund, a new major fund, end with a fund 

balance of $0. The fund received funds from the bond issuance in the amount of $1,063,433 as 

well as special assessments in the amount of $101,505 to offset the costs of road improvement 

projects of $1,167,368. 

 

The fund balance of the nonmajor governmental funds increased by $334,170 during the current 

fiscal year leading to combined ending fund balances of $854,017. 
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Proprietary Funds - The Township’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information 

found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

 

Unrestricted net position at the end of the year was $770,996 for the sewer fund. Total net position 

decreased by $159,043 which put the overall net position at $9,923,977.  The significant reasons 

for the change in net position of the sewer fund are stated in the previous section. 

 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 

Original budget compared to final budget. There were no significant adjustments to the budget 

during the year.  
 

Final budget compared to actual results. During the current fiscal year the Township had the 

following significant expenditure in excess of the appropriated amount in the general fund: 

 

 
 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 

Capital Assets 
 

The Township’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as 

of March 31, 2019 amounts to $12,428,792 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in 

capital assets includes land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and sewer infrastructure.   

 

The following summarizes the Township’s capital assets:  

 

 
 

More detailed information about the Township’s capital assets can be found in note 5. 

 

  

Final Actual Variance

General

Capital Outlay 24,750$         33,593$           (8,843)$        

Governmental 

Activities

Business-type 

Activities Total

Land -$                   17,595$           17,595$           

Construction in progress 26,472            -                     26,472            

Machinery and equipment 21,246            -                     21,246            

Buildings 89,079            -                     89,079            

Land Improvements 10,954            -                     10,954            

Sewer System -                     12,263,446      12,263,446      

147,751$         12,281,041$     12,428,792$     
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Long-term Debt 

 

As described in note 7 to the financial statements, the Township had $8,549,737 in long-term debt 

at the end of the fiscal year.  In addition, the township issued bonds in the amount of $1,063,433, 

including premium, to offset the costs of increased road improvement projects during the year. 

The Township is well under its legal debt limit as of year-end.  

 

Economic Condition and Outlook 

 

The activity for 2020 is expected to be similar to the activity of 2019. The Township continues to 

review all budget line items for opportunities to reduce expenditures when possible. The budget 

will be monitored during the year to identify any necessary amendments.  In 2020, the Township 

plans again to use current revenues to provide essential services and to maintain the Township’s 

financial reserves at similar levels. Property tax revenues are expected to change minimally 

reflecting fairly stable property values. Capital outlay and other expenditures will increase by 

approximately $1,400,000 in the coming year due to costs related to a new building purchase. The 

ongoing costs of providing essential services for the citizens of the Township will again need to 

be monitored in order to maintain the financial condition of the Township. 

 

Contacting the Township 

 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Township’s finances to its 

citizens, customers, investors, and creditors and to demonstrate the Township’s accountability for 

the resources it receives. Questions regarding any information provided in this report or requests 

for additional financial information should be addressed to: 

 

The Township of Tyrone 

10408 Center Road 

Fenton, MI 48430 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ASSETS

Current Assets

    Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 7,162,264 $ 444,449 $ 7,606,713 

    Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted -- 1,090,928 1,090,928 

    Investments 185,651 277,795 463,446 

    Receivables 348,238 264,991 613,229 

    Special Assessments Receivables, Current 114,061 522,195 636,256 

    Prepaid Items 10,836 -- 10,836 

    Due from Agency Fund 4,071 -- 4,071 

    Total Current Assets 7,825,121 2,600,358 10,425,479 

Noncurrent Assets

    Capital Assets not being Depreciated 26,472 17,595 44,067 

    Capital Assets being Depreciated 121,279 12,263,446 12,384,725 

    Land Contracts Receivable 108,812 -- 108,812 

    Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted -- 99,970 99,970 

    Cash Held by Agent -- 1,027 1,027 

    Investments - Restricted -- 1,978,665 1,978,665 

    Special Assessment Receivables 1,009,372 2,533,910 3,543,282 

    Total Assets 9,091,056 19,494,971 28,586,027 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Charge on Refunding -- 258,521 258,521 

   Total Deferred Outflows of Resources -- 258,521 258,521 

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

    Accounts Payable 114,104 59,045 173,149 

    Accrued Liabilities and Other 6,473 -- 6,473 

    Accrued Interest 12,794 102,978 115,772 

    Current Portion of Long-term Debt 90,000 879,330 969,330 

    Internal Balances (6,188) 6,188 --

    Total Current Liabilities 217,183 1,047,541 1,264,724 

Noncurrent Liabilities

    Long-term Debt 1,348,433 6,231,974 7,580,407 

    Internal Balances (2,550,000) 2,550,000 --

    Total Liabilities (984,384) 9,829,515 8,845,131 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

   Taxes Levied for a Subsequent Period 675,920 -- 675,920 

   Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 675,920 -- 675,920 

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 147,751 5,429,285 5,577,036 

Restricted for:

    Public Safety 867,391 -- 867,391 

    Debt Service 496,975 3,723,696 4,220,671 

    Public Access Programming 317,384 -- 317,384 

    Streets and Right of Way 12,704 -- 12,704 

    Waste Removal 12,974 -- 12,974 

    Snow Removal 10,423 -- 10,423 

    Lighting Districts 3,482 -- 3,482 

Unrestricted 7,530,436 770,996 8,301,432

    Total Net Position $ 9,399,520 $ 9,923,977 $ 19,323,497

Township of Tyrone
Statement of Net Position

March 31, 2019

Primary Government

Governmental 

Activities

Business-type 

Activities Total
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Functions/Programs

Primary Government

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 633,348 $ 223,076 $ -- $ -- $ (410,272) $ -- $ (410,272)

Public Safety 597,663 672,186 -- -- 74,523 -- 74,523 

Public Works 1,493,711 1,432,462 -- -- (61,249) -- (61,249)

Community and Economic Development 104,196 -- -- -- (104,196) -- (104,196)

Health and Welfare 4,400 -- -- -- (4,400) -- (4,400)

Culture 36,719 -- -- -- (36,719) -- (36,719)

Other Functions 122,852 -- -- -- (122,852) -- (122,852)

Interest on Long-term Debt 41,716 -- -- -- (41,716) -- (41,716)

    Total Governmental Activities 3,034,605 2,327,724 -- -- (706,881) -- (706,881)

Business-type Activities:

Sewer Fund 1,446,993 1,084,532 -- 168,897 -- (193,564) (193,564)

    Total Business-type Activities 1,446,993 1,084,532 -- 168,897 -- (193,564) (193,564)

    Total Primary Government $ 4,481,598 $ 3,412,256 $ -- $ 168,897 $ (706,881) $ (193,564) $ (900,445)

445,624 -- 445,624 

63,109 34,521 97,630 

888,208 -- 888,208 

198,496 -- 198,496 

1,595,437 34,521 1,629,958 

888,556 (159,043) 729,513 

8,510,964 10,083,020 18,593,984 

$ 9,399,520 $ 9,923,977 $ 19,323,497 Net Position at End of Period

Property Taxes

Interest

State Revenue

Cable Franchise Fees

   Total General Revenues

General Purpose Revenues:

Revenues

   Change in Net Position

Net Position at Beginning of Period

Expenses

Charges for 

Services

Operating 

Grants and 

Contributions

Capital Grants 

and 

Contributions

Primary Government

Governmental 

Activities

Business-type 

Activities Total

Township of Tyrone

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue
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ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,921,590 $ 1,530,922 $ 3,462 $ 706,290 $ 7,162,264 

Investments -- -- -- 185,651 185,651 

Receivables 193,193 126,101 -- 28,944 348,238 

Prepaid Items 9,237 -- -- 1,599 10,836 

Due from Agency Fund 4,071 -- -- -- 4,071 

Due from Other Funds 10,400 -- -- -- 10,400 

Land Contracts Receivable 108,812 -- -- -- 108,812 

Special Assessment Receivables -- -- -- 1,123,433 1,123,433 

Advances to Other Funds 2,550,000 -- -- -- 2,550,000 

   Total Assets $ 7,797,303 $ 1,657,023 $ 3,462 $ 2,045,917 $ 11,503,705 

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable $ 29,037 $ 84,830 $ -- $ 237 $ 114,104 

Accrued Liabilities and Other 6,473 -- -- -- 6,473 

Due to Other Funds 240 510 3,462 -- 4,212 

   Total Liabilities 35,750 85,340 3,462 237 124,789 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable Revenue  108,812                96,602 --          1,123,433          1,328,847 

Taxes Levied for a Subsequent Period --             607,690 -- 68,230 675,920

   Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 144,562 789,632 3,462 1,191,900 2,129,556 

FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable 2,559,237 -- -- 1,599 2,560,836 

Restricted -- 867,391 -- 853,942 1,721,333 

Committed 500,000 -- -- -- 500,000

Assigned 2,490,484 -- -- -- 2,490,484 

Unassigned 2,103,020 -- -- (1,524) 2,101,496

   Total Fund Balance 7,652,741 867,391 -- 854,017 9,374,149 

   Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balance $ 7,797,303 $ 1,657,023 $ 3,462 $ 2,045,917 $ 11,503,705 

Lake Shannon 

Road 

Improvement

Other 

Governmental 

Funds

Township of Tyrone
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
March 31, 2019

Special Revenue Capital Projects

Total 

Governmental 

FundsGeneral Public Safety
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Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds $ 9,374,149 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not 

reported in the fund statement. This amount represents capital assets of $580,052 less accumulated 

depreciation of $432,301. 147,751 

Receivables not collected within 60 days of the Township's year-end are not available to pay current 

period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 1,328,847 

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the 

funds.  This represents bonds payable as of year-end. (1,438,433)

In the statement of net position, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds, whereas in the governmental 

funds, the interest expenditure is reported when due. (12,794)

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities $ 9,399,520 

Township of Tyrone
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

March 31, 2019
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Revenues

Property Taxes $ 445,624 $ -- $ -- $ -- $ 445,624 

Licenses and Permits 29,260 -- -- 14 29,274 

State Revenue 888,208 -- -- 12,214 900,422 

Charges for Services 207,279 50,615 -- -- 257,894 

Fines and Forfeitures 21,824 -- -- -- 21,824 

Special Assessments -- 602,650 101,505 430,351 1,134,506 

Cable Franchise Fees 141,783 -- -- 56,713 198,496 

Other Miscellaneous Income 25,077 -- -- -- 25,077 

Interest 44,221 11,028 2,430 5,430 63,109 

   Total Revenues 1,803,276 664,293 103,935 504,722 3,076,226 

Expenditures

General Government 618,952 -- -- -- 618,952 

Public Safety -- 595,402 -- 2,261 597,663 

Public Works 245,116 -- 1,167,368 81,227 1,493,711 

Health and Welfare 4,400 -- -- -- 4,400 

Community and Economic Development 104,196 -- -- -- 104,196 

Culture 3,031 -- -- 33,688 36,719 

Other Functions 122,852 -- -- -- 122,852 

Capital Outlay 33,593 -- -- -- 33,593 

Debt Service - Interest -- -- -- 33,376 33,376 

Debt Service - Principal -- -- -- 20,000 20,000 

   Total Expenditures 1,132,140 595,402 1,167,368 170,552 3,065,462 

   Excess of Revenues Over

      (Under) Expenditures 671,136 68,891 (1,063,433) 334,170 10,764 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of Long-term Debt -- -- 1,063,433 -- 1,063,433 

   Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) -- -- 1,063,433 -- 1,063,433 

   Net Change in Fund Balance 671,136 68,891 -- 334,170 1,074,197 

Fund Balance at Beginning of Period 6,981,605 798,500 -- 519,847 8,299,952 

Fund Balance at End of Period $ 7,652,741 $ 867,391 $ -- $ 854,017 $ 9,374,149 

Lake Shannon 

Road 

Improvement

Other 

Governmental 

Funds

Township of Tyrone
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

Special Revenue Capital Projects

Total 

Governmental 

FundsGeneral Public Safety
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Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 1,074,197 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those 

assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This amount represents 

capital outlay expenditures of $33,593 less depreciation expense of $14,396. 19,197 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in 

the funds but, rather, are deferred to the following fiscal year.  This represents the change in deferred inflows related 

to unavailable revenues during the year. 846,935 

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds but the repayment reduces long-term 

liabilities in the statement of net position. 20,000 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, 

therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the funds.  This represents the change in accrued interest during the 

year. (8,340)

Issuance of long-term debt is reported as other financing sources on governmental funds; however, in the statement of 

net position, this amount is stated as long-term debt. (1,063,433)

Changes in Net Position - Governmental Activities $ 888,556 

Township of Tyrone
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance with Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended March 31, 2019
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ASSETS

Current Assets

   Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 444,449 

   Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted 1,090,928 

   Investments 277,795 

   Receivables 264,991 

   Special Assessments Receivables, Current 522,195 

   Due from Other Funds 750 

   Total Current Assets 2,601,108 

Noncurrent Assets

   Capital Assets not being Depreciated 17,595 

   Capital Assets being Depreciated 12,263,446 

   Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted 99,970 

   Cash Held by Agent 1,027 

   Investments - Restricted 1,978,665 

   Special Assessment Receivables 2,533,910 

   Total Assets 19,495,721 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Charge on Refunding 258,521 

   Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 258,521 

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

   Accounts Payable 59,045 

   Accrued Interest 102,978 

   Current Portion of Long-term Debt 879,330 

   Due to Other Funds 6,938 

   Total Current Liabilities 1,048,291 

Noncurrent Liabilities

   Long-term Debt 6,231,974 

   Advances from Other Funds 2,550,000 

   Total Liabilities 9,830,265 

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 5,429,285 

Restricted for:

   Debt Service 3,723,696 

Unrestricted 770,996 

   Total Net Position $ 9,923,977 

Sewer Fund

Township of Tyrone
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Fund
March 31, 2019

Business-type 

Activities - 

Enterprise Fund
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Operating Revenues

Charges for Services $ 895,988 

Other Miscellaneous Income 188,544 

   Total Operating Revenues 1,084,532 

Operating Expenses

Cost of Sewage Operations and Maintenance 684,720 

Depreciation 520,432 

   Total Operating Expenses 1,205,152 

   Operating Income (Loss) (120,620)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest 34,521 

Special Assessments 168,897 

Debt Service Interest (232,956)

Debt Service Charge (7,743)

Miscellaneous Expenses (1,142)

   Net Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (38,423)

   Change In Net Position (159,043)

Net Position at Beginning of Period 10,083,020 

Net Position at End of Period $ 9,923,977 

Sewer Fund

Township of Tyrone
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

Business-type 

Activities - 

Enterprise Fund
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from customers and users  $          1,061,821 

Payments to suppliers                (687,106)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities                 374,715 

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities

Miscellaneous Expense                    (1,142)

Interfund Balances 142                       

Net Cash Used by Non-capital Financing Activities                    (1,000)

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Special assessment collections                 718,417 

Principal payments on long-term debt                (889,081)

Interest payments on long-term debt                (218,889)

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities                (389,553)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest received on investments 34,521                  

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 34,521                  

Net Increase in Cash and Equivalents 18,683                  

Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year 3,873,124             

Cash and Equivalents - End of Year 3,891,807$           

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Loss (120,620)$            

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Depreciation expense 520,432                

Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Accounts receivable (22,711)                

Accounts payable (2,386)                  

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 374,715$              

Sewer Fund

Township of Tyrone
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

Business-type 

Activities - 

Enterprise Fund
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ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 14,970

   Total Assets 14,970

LIABILITIES

Refundable Deposits, Bonds, Etc. 9,768 

Due to Other Governmental Units 1,131 

Due to Primary Government 4,071

   Total Liabilities $ 14,970

Township of Tyrone
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Fiduciary Funds
March 31, 2019

Agency
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Township of Tyrone 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 

The financial statements of the Township of Tyrone (the “Township” or “government”) have been 

prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to 

governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 

standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial-reporting principles. 

The more significant of the Township’s accounting policies are described below. 

 

Reporting Entity 

 

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, "The Financial Reporting Entity," these financial 

statements represent the Township for financial reporting purposes. The criteria established by 

GASB for determining the reporting entity includes oversight responsibility, fiscal dependency, 

and whether the financial statements would be misleading if component unit data were not 

included. Accordingly, there are no other governmental organizations required to be included in 

the financial statements of the Township. 

 

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 

activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For 

the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 

Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, 

are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and 

charges for support.  

 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 

or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 

with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or 

applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a 

given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 

operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not 

properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and 

fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 

statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are 

reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary 

- 26 -



Township of Tyrone 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

 

fund financial statements, except for agency funds which do not have a measurement focus. 

Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, 

regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the 

year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all 

eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 

as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 

collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 

period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected 

within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period or within one year for expenditure-driven 

grants. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 

accounting. However, debt service and compensated absences expenditures are recorded only 

when payment is due. 

 

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal 

period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of 

the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current 

fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other 

revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the 

Township. 

 

The Township of Tyrone reports the following major governmental funds: 

 

The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 

resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another 

fund. 

 

The public safety fund is used to account for the Township's police and fire activities paid 

with extra voted special assessments. 

 

The Lake Shannon road improvement - capital projects is used to account for the 

Township’s recent long-term debt issuance and related road improvement expenditures. 

 

The Township reports the following major proprietary fund: 

 

The sewer fund accounts for the operations of the sewage pumping and collection system. 

  

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types: 

 

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources 

(other than permanent trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to 

expenditures for specified purposes. 
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 Debt service funds are used to account for all financial resources restricted, committed, or 

assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. 

 

Agency funds account for assets held by the Township as an agent for individuals, private 

organizations, and other governments. 

 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 

delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The 

principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds are charges for services. Operating expenses 

for the enterprise funds include depreciation on capital assets, labor, supplies, and contracted 

services. All revenues and expenses are not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 

revenues and expenses. 

 

Interfund Activity 

 

During the course of operations, the government has activity between funds for various purposes. 

Any residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances 

to/from other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain 

eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances 

between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount 

is included as internal balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between 

the funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only 

the net amount is included as internal balances in the business-type activities column. 

 
Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In 

fund financial statements, these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While 

reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the 

government-wide financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental 

activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental 

activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities are 

eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the business-type activities 

column. 

 

Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity 

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

The Township’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, 

and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 

acquisition. 
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Investments 

 

Investments are stated at fair value at the balance sheet date. 

 

Restricted Assets 

 

The Township’s restricted cash and cash equivalents and restricted investments in its sewer fund 

report the resources accumulated from the issuance of special assessments within the sewer fund 

that are legally restricted to repay the underlying bond principal and interest amounts. 

 

Receivables 

 

All trade and property tax receivables are shown as net of allowance for uncollectible amounts.  

The Township reported no uncollectible amounts as of March 31, 2019. 

 

Prepaid Items 

 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as 

prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 

Capital Assets  
 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, intangible assets, and infrastructure 

assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable 

governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. 

Capital assets are defined by the Township as assets with an initial individual cost of more than 

$2,500 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical 

cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at 

acquisition value at the date of donation. 

 

Infrastructure, intangibles, buildings, equipment, and vehicles are depreciated using the straight-

line method over the following useful lives: 

 

 
 

Long-term Obligations 
 

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund financial 

statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 

Years

Buildings 39

Land improvements 15

Machinery, equipment, and software 3 - 7

Sewer distribution system 39
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applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund-type statement of 

net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds 

using the effective interest method; bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium 

or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed at the time they are incurred. In the fund financial 

statements, governmental fund types recognize bond issuances as an “other financing source,” as 

well as bond premiums and discounts. The general fund is generally used to liquidate governmental 

long-term debt. 

 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report 

a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 

deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 

period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until 

then. The Township has a deferred outflow in the sewer fund and government-wide statements 

related to a bond refunding charge that is being amortized. 

 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section 

for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 

resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not 

be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Township has two types of 

items that are reported under this category.  First, the Township reports special assessment 

revenues, which are levied to finance the following period’s budget, as deferred and recognized as 

an inflow of resources in the period that it was intended to finance.  The Township has a second 

type of deferred inflow, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting, which 

qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenues, is reported 

only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues 

from two sources: amounts receivable and special assessments; both of which are collected beyond 

60 days after the date of the financial statements. These amounts are deferred and recognized as 

an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. 

 

Net Position Flow Assumption 

 

Sometimes the Township will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., 

restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to 

report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the government-wide and 

proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which 

the resources are considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy to consider restricted net 

position to have been depleted before unrestricted net position is applied. 

 

Fund Balance Flow Assumptions  

 

Sometimes the Township will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and 

unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to 
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calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in 

the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in 

which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy to consider 

restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted 

fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same 

purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned 

fund balance is applied last. 

 

Fund Balance Policies 

 

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any 

limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes.  Governmental funds report 

nonspendable fund balance for amounts that cannot be spent because they are either: a) not in 

spendable form or b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Restricted fund 

balance is reported when externally imposed constraints are placed on the use of resources by 

grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The government itself can 

establish limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund 

balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).  

 

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific 

purposes determined by a formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making 

authority. The Township Board is the highest level of decision-making authority for the 

government that can, by adoption of a resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund 

balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the resolution remains in place until a similar 

action is taken (the adoption of another resolution) to remove or revise the limitation. 

 

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government 

for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The Township 

Board, or its designee, is authorized to assign fund balance. The Township Board may also assign 

fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue 

and appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, 

assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not 

normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an 

additional action is essential to either remove or revise a commitment. 

 

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the Township’s general fund and 

includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications and is therefore available 

to be spent as determined by the Township Board. 

 

Use of Estimates 

 

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 

principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions regarding certain types of assets, 

liabilities, revenues, and expenses. Such estimates primarily relate to unsettled transactions and 
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events as of the date of the financial statements. Accordingly, upon settlement, actual results may 

differ from estimated amounts. 

 

Property Tax Revenue Recognition  
 

The Township levies property taxes on December 1 of each year. These taxes become liens on the 

property at that date. Township taxes are collected without penalty from December 1 to February 

28 each year. The taxes become delinquent on March 1 and penalties are assessed. The Township's 

2018 tax is levied and collectible on December 1, 2018 and is recognized as revenue in the year 

ended March 31, 2019, when the proceeds of the levy are budgeted and available for the financing 

of operations. 

 

The 2018 taxable valuation of the Township totaled $490,624,332, on which taxes levied consisted 

of .8899 mills for operating purposes. This resulted in $435,500 of revenue recognized in the 

general fund. 

 

Special Assessments 

 

The Township special assesses a flat fee per parcel for public works (road maintenance and 

construction), public safety (police and fire), lighting, rubbish removal, and snow removal. The 

assessment is levied and collectible on December 1, 2018 and is recognized as revenue in the year 

ended March 31, 2019, when the proceeds of the assessment are budgeted to pay for the operation 

of the special assessment districts, except for service-type special assessments which recognize 

revenue in the period the related services are provided. 

 

Subsequent Events 

 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through August 5, 2019, the date the financial statements 

were available to be issued. In April 2019, the Township purchased land and a building for 

$1,000,000 for a new township hall. An estimated $400,000 will be needed to renovate the new 

building. Township personnel expect to be in the new building later in fiscal 2020. Further, the 

Township will begin the Laurel Spring and Irish Hills road projects in 2020. 

 

Management is not aware of any other subsequent events that would have a significant impact on 

the financial condition of the Township.   

 

Note 2 - Statutory Compliance 

 

Budgetary Information 

 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles 

for the general fund and all special revenue funds.  All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-

end, except for approved contracts which are appropriated on a contract (grant) length basis. 
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The budget document presents information by fund, function, department, and line items. The legal 

level of budgetary control adopted by the governing body is the department level (i.e., the level at 

which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations). The Supervisor is authorized to 

transfer budgeted amounts within departmental appropriation accounts. However, any revisions 

that alter the total expenditures of any department must be approved by the Township Board.  

Amounts encumbered for purchase orders, contracts, etc. are not tracked during the year. Budget 

appropriations are considered to be spent once the goods are delivered or the services rendered. 

 

The Township follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 

statements: 

 

1. Prior to February 1, the Supervisor submits to the Township board a proposed operating 

budget for the fiscal year commencing the following April 1. The operating budget includes 

proposed expenditures and the means of financing them for the general fund and special 

revenue funds. 

 

2. Public hearings are conducted at the Township Hall to obtain taxpayer comments. 

 

3. Prior to April 1, the budget is legally enacted on a departmental (activity) basis through 

passage of a resolution in accordance with Public Act 621 of the State of Michigan. 

 

The Township had one expenditure in excess of the amount appropriated during the year ended 

March 31, 2019, as follows: 

 

 
 

Note 3 - Deposits and Investments 

 

Michigan Compiled Laws Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended) authorizes local 

governmental units to make deposits and invest in the accounts of federally insured banks, credit 

unions, and savings and loan associations that have offices in Michigan. The local unit is allowed 

to invest in bonds, securities, and other direct obligations of the United States or any agency or 

instrumentality of the United States; repurchase agreements; bankers' acceptances of United States 

banks; commercial paper rated within the two highest classifications, which matures not more than 

270 days after the date of purchase; obligations of the State of Michigan or its political 

subdivisions, which are rated as investment grade; and mutual funds composed of investment 

vehicles that are legal for direct investment by local units of government in Michigan. 

 

The Township has designated several banks for the deposit of its funds. The investment policy 

adopted by the board is in accordance with Public Act 196 of 1997. The Township's deposits and 

investment policies are in accordance with statutory authority.   

Final Actual Variance

General

Capital Outlay 24,750$         33,593$           (8,843)$        
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Following is a reconciliation of deposit and investments balances as of March 31, 2019: 

 

 
 

The Township's cash and investments are subject to several types of risk, which are examined in 

more detail below. 

 

Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank 

failure, the Township’s deposits may not be returned. State law does not require and the Township 

does not have a policy for deposit custodial credit risk. At year end, the carrying amount of the 

Township’s deposits was $11,255,720.  As of year-end, $4,451,633 of the combined deposit (bank) 

balances of $11,264,990 was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and 

uncollateralized.  The Township believes that due to the dollar amounts of cash deposits and the 

limits of FDIC insurance, it is impractical to insure all bank deposits. As a result, the Township 

evaluates each financial institution with which it deposits Township funds and assesses the level 

of risk of each institution; only those institutions with an acceptable estimated risk level are used 

as depositories. 

 

Credit Risk - State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top two ratings issued by 

nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The Township has no investment policy that 

would further limit its investment choices. As of year-end, the credit quality ratings of debt 

securities (other than the U.S. government) are as follows: 

 

 

Statement of Net Position

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,606,713$        

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted 1,090,928          

Investments 463,446             

Noncurrent Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted 99,970               

Investments - Restricted 1,978,665          

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,970               

Total Deposits and Investments 11,254,692$      

Deposits and Investments

 Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,811,981$        

 Certificates of Deposit 2,442,111          

 Cash on Hand 600                    

 Total 11,254,692$      

Investment Rating Organization Rating Maturity Fair Value

MI CLASS - Mutual Fund Standard & Poor's AAAm N/A 443,769$    
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Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that the market rate of securities in the portfolio 

will fall due to changes in market interest rates. State law limits the allowable investments and the 

maturities of some of the allowable investments as identified in the summary of significant 

accounting policies. The Township’s investment policy does not have specific limits in excess of 

state law on investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising 

from increasing interest rates. 

 

Maturity dates for investments and certificates of deposit held at year-end are summarized as 

follows: 

 
 

Fair Value Measurement - The Township categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair 

value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based 

on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices 

in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 

3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 

 

The Township has the following recurring fair value measurements as of March 31, 2019: 

 

 Investments held with MICLASS totaled $443,769.  MICLASS is authorized to invest in 

the same investment types as local units of government in Michigan.  These holdings are 

valued using Level 2 inputs. 

 

Note 4 - Receivables  

 

Receivables as of year-end for the Township's individual major funds and the nonmajor funds, net 

of the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

 

 
 

  

Certificates of 

Deposit

Due in 1-5 Years 138,875$         

Due Within 1 Year 2,303,236        

2,442,111$      

General Fund

Public Safety 

Fund

Nonmajor 

Funds Total Sewer Fund

Receivables:

Accounts 34,447$          126,101$         28,944$           189,492$         187,785$         

Due from County 20,537            -                 -                 20,537            77,206            

Due from State 138,209          -                 -                 138,209           -                 

Total Receivables 193,193$        126,101$         28,944$           348,238$         264,991$         
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Note 5 - Capital Assets 

 

Capital asset activity for governmental activities during the year was as follows: 

 

 
 

All depreciation expense for governmental activities was charged to the general government 

function. 

 

Capital asset activity for business-type activities during the year was as follows: 

 

 

Governmental Activities April 1, 2018 Additions Reductions March 31, 2019

Capital assets not being depreciated

Construction in progress  $                  -    $           26,472  $                  -    $           26,472 

Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings 365,658           3,750               -                   369,408           

Machinery and equipment 107,383           3,371               -                   110,754           

Information technology 44,420             -                   -                   44,420             

Land improvements 28,998             -                   -                   28,998             

Total capital assets being depreciated 546,459           7,121               -                   553,580           

Less accumulated depreciation

Buildings 270,005           10,324             -                   280,329           

Machinery and equipment 87,363             2,145               -                   89,508             

Information technology 44,420             -                   -                   44,420             

Land improvements 16,117             1,927               -                   18,044             

Total accumulated depreciation 417,905           14,396             -                   432,301           

Capital assets being depreciated, net 128,554           (7,275)              -                   121,279           

Capital assets, net 128,554$         19,197$           -$                 147,751$         

Business-type Activities April 1, 2018 Additions Transfers March 31, 2019

Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 17,595$           -$                 -$                 17,595$           

Capital assets being depreciated

Sewer System 20,319,380      -                   -                   20,319,380      

Machinery and equipment 360,810           -                   -                   360,810           

Total capital assets being depreciated 20,680,190      -                       -                       20,680,190      

Less accumulated depreciation

Sewer System 7,535,502        520,432           -                   8,055,934        

Machinery and equipment 360,810           -                   -                   360,810           

Total accumulated depreciation 7,896,312        520,432           -                   8,416,744        

Capital assets being depreciated, net 12,783,878      (520,432)          -                   12,263,446      

Capital assets, net 12,801,473$    (520,432)$        -$                 12,281,041$    
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Note 6 - Interfund Balances 

 

Interfund Balances 

 

The interfund balances as of March 31, 2019 were as follows: 

 

 
 

Interfund balances resulted primarily from the time lag between the dates that: 1) interfund goods 

and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, 2) transactions are recorded in the 

accounting system, and 3) payments between funds are made. 

 

Advances between the general fund and sewer fund ($2,550,000) are expected to be repaid in the 

next 20 years based on a tentative repayment schedule as the sewer fund looks for ways to increase 

funds while making its bond payments.  Payments to the general fund are not expected to start in 

the coming year. 

 

Note 7 - Long-term Debt 

 

The Township issues bonds to provide for the acquisition and construction of major capital 

facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the 

Township. County contractual agreements and installment purchase agreements are also general 

obligations of the government. Special assessment bonds provide for capital improvements that 

benefit specific properties and will be repaid from amounts levied against those properties 

benefited from the construction. In the event that a deficiency exists because of unpaid or 

delinquent special assessments at the time a debt service payment is due, the Township is obligated 

to provide resources to cover the deficiency until other resources (such as tax sale proceeds or a 

reassessment of the Township) are received. Revenue bonds involve a pledge of specific income 

derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay debt service. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Sewer 6,938$           

General Lake Shannon Road Improvement - Capital Project 3,462             

Sewer General 240                

Sewer Public Safety 510                
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Following is a summary of long-term debt activity of the Township for the year ended March 31, 

2019: 

 
 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above bonds and note obligations are as 

follows: 

 
Lake Shannon Road Improvement Special Assessment Bonds – Series 2018 - Tyrone Township 

issued $1,045,000 in Special Assessment Bonds. The Lake Shannon Road Improvement Special 

Assessment Bonds were issued pursuant to Act 188, Michigan Public Acts of 1954, as amended. 

They are primarily payable from collections of special assessments levied against the benefited 

properties in the district. The Township's limited tax full faith and credit are pledged for the 

payment of the bonds if the special assessments are not adequate. The interest rate is 4.23% with 

a maturity date of July 1, 2028. 

 

Parkin Lane Road Improvement Special Assessment Bonds – Series 2010 - Tyrone Township 

issued $500,000 in Special Assessment Bonds. The Parkin Lane Road Improvement Special 

Assessment Bonds were issued pursuant to Act 188, Michigan Public Acts of 1954, as amended. 

They are primarily payable from collections of special assessments levied against the benefited 

Beginning 

Balance Additions Reductions

Ending 

Balance

Due Within 

One Year

Governmental Activities

Lake Shannon Road Special Assessment Bond -$            1,045,000$   -$            1,045,000$   70,000$       

Bond Premiums -              18,433         -              18,433         -              

Parkin Lane Road Special Assessment Bond 395,000       -              20,000         375,000       20,000         

Total Governmental Activities 395,000       1,063,433     20,000         1,438,433     90,000         

Business-type Activities

Livingston County Sanitary Sewer Improvement 

Bonds Series 2007 2,825,000     -              430,000       2,395,000     450,000       

Livingston County Sanitary Sewer Improvement 

Refunding Bonds Series 2013 4,120,000     -              395,000       3,725,000     390,000       

Bond Premiums 262,177       26,821         235,356       -              

Livingston County Clean Water Sewer 

Improvement Bond, Series 2015 793,208       -              37,260         755,948       39,330         

Total Business-type Activities 8,000,385     -              889,081       7,111,304     879,330       

Total Primary Government Long-term Debt 8,395,385$   1,063,433$   909,081$      8,549,737$   969,330$      

Year Ended

March 31, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2020 90,000$       49,715$       139,715$     879,330$     211,598$     1,090,928$   

2021 135,000       46,028         181,028       894,330       180,616       1,074,946     

2022 135,000       41,453         176,453       916,400       148,907       1,065,307     

2023 135,000       36,753         171,753       921,400       116,598       1,037,998     

2024 140,000       31,940         171,940       908,470       84,437         992,907       

2025-2029 705,000       84,606         789,606       2,036,840     191,373       2,228,213     

2030-2034 80,000         3,960           83,960         262,890       27,116         290,006       

2035-2038 -                 -                 -                 56,288         1,408           57,696         

Totals 1,420,000$   294,455$     1,714,455$   6,875,948$   962,053$     7,838,001$   

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
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properties in the district. The Township's limited tax full faith and credit are pledged for the 

payment of the bonds if the special assessments are not adequate. The interest rate ranges from 

3.00% to 4.95% with a maturity date of July 1, 2030. 

 

Tyrone Township Sewer Bonds - Series 2007 - Tyrone Township, through Livingston County, 

issued $4,155,000 in Sanitary Sewer Improvement Refunding Bonds. The Livingston County 

Sanitary Sewer Improvement Refunding Bonds Series 2007 (Tyrone Township Sewer Bonds) 

were issued pursuant to Act 185 and 342, Michigan Public Acts of 1954, as amended. The bonds 

were issued to refund a portion of the Tyrone Township Sewer Bonds - Series 2003. The bond 

proceeds were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the 

old bonds.  Accordingly, the trust accounts’ assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not 

included in the financial statements. The interest rate is 4.00% with a maturity date of November 

1, 2023. 

 

Tyrone Township Sewer Bonds - Series 2013 - Tyrone Township, through Livingston County, 

issued $4,945,000 in Sanitary Sewer Improvement Refunding Bonds. The Livingston County 

Sanitary Sewer Improvement Refunding Bonds Series 2013 (Tyrone Township Sewer Bonds) 

were issued pursuant to Act 185 and 342, Michigan Public Acts of 1954, as amended. The bonds 

were issued to refund a portion of the Tyrone Township Sewer Bonds - Series 2005. The bond 

proceeds were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the 

old bonds. Accordingly, the trust accounts’ assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not 

included in the financial statements. The maturity date is May 1, 2028. 

 

During May 2013, the Township refinanced its Sanitary Sewer Improvement Bonds Series 2005 

in the amount of $4,945,000. The debt has a maturity of 15 years and bears an interest rate of 2 

percent through May 2017, 4 percent for 2018, and 3 percent for 2019 through 2028. The proceeds 

of $5,313,150 (after payment of $16,071 in underwriter's discount and a bond premium of 

$384,221) were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in 

an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the 

original bonds. As a result, the bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for the bonds 

has been removed. The advance refunding reduced total debt service payments over the next 25 

years by $478,483, which represents an economic gain of $421,211. 

 

Township of Tyrone Sewer Bonds - Series 2015 - Lake Tyrone Improvements - Tyrone 

Township, through Livingston County, issued $2,240,000 in Sanitary Sewer Improvement 

Refunding Bonds. The Livingston County Sewage Disposal System Bonds Series 2015 (Tyrone 

Township Sewer Bonds) were issued pursuant to part 53 of the Clean Water Assistance, of the 

Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended. The bonds were 

issued to pay for improvements to the Lake Tyrone sanitary sewer system.  The bonds will be split 

between the Township of Tyrone (41.4%) and the Township of Hartland (58.6%), which was 

determined based on the total taxable values of the properties in both townships.  Tyrone Township 

will also provide sufficient capacity from its current 2003 sewer system for treating the output of 

77 Lake Tyrone residential connections.  Payments will be made to the 2003 Sewer Debt Fund for 

those 77 connections. The interest rate is 2.50% with a maturity date of April 1, 2035. 
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The bond is primarily payable from collections of special assessments levied against the benefited 

properties in the district and revenue expected to be generated by future sewer connection fees. 

The bonds are dated September 17, 2015 with interest and principal payable April 1 and interest 

payable October 1. The Township's limited tax full faith and credit are pledged for the payment of 

the bonds if the special assessments are not adequate. 

 

Act 359, Michigan Public Acts of 1947, as amended, provides that net indebtedness of 

municipalities cannot exceed 10 percent of the assessed real and personal property in the 

Township. As of March 31, 2019, Tyrone Township had not incurred any indebtedness which 

would be limited under Act 359. The Township's existing general long-term debt obligation 

contracts are specifically exempted from consideration in the 10 percent limit computation. 

 

Note 8 - Risk Management and Contingent Liabilities 

 

The Township is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omission, 

and employee injuries. The Township has purchased commercial insurance for these claims. 

Settled claims for the commercial insurance have not exceeded the amount of insurance coverage 

in any of the past three fiscal years. 

 

Livingston County (the "County") purchases delinquent tax rolls from the County's local units. In 

the event that those taxes become uncollectible, the County charges those amounts back to the 

local units. Therefore, the Township is exposed to potential refunds to Livingston County for the 

amount of uncollectible taxes and special assessment that were purchased by the County. The 

County has purchased a significant amount of delinquent special assessments levied by the Sewer 

Fund over the past few years. As of March 31, 2019, the Township estimates there is no significant 

liability related to Livingston County chargebacks. 

 

Note 9 - Commitments 

 

The Township has committed to a multi-year fire suppression, rescue, and emergency medical 

services agreement with the Charter Township of Fenton, the City of Fenton, and Hartland 

Township. An agreement was signed covering the period from April 1, 2019 through March 31, 

2024.  This agreement commits the Township to pay a base rate for each fire run of: 

 

 
 

The Township paid $433,876 during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019 under the agreement. 

Year Ending 

March 31,

Base Rate 

per Run

2020 1,419$            

2021 1,433              

2022 1,447              

2023 1,461              

2024 1,476              
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Note 10 - Net Investment in Capital Assets 

 

Below is the determination of the net investment of capital assets as of March 31, 2019: 

 

 

Governmental Business-type

Nondepreciable capital assets 26,472$          17,595$         

Depreciable capital assets, net 121,279 12,263,446

Current portion of long-term debt -                 (879,330)

Long-term debt -                 (6,231,974)

Deferred charge on bond refunding -                 258,521

Cash held by agent - restricted -                 1,027

Net investment in capital assets 147,751$        5,429,285$    
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Variance

Positive

(Negative)

Original Final Actual Final to Actual

Revenues

Property Taxes $ 413,160 $ 413,160 $ 445,624 $ 32,464 

Licenses and Permits 16,892 16,892 29,260 12,368 

State-Shared Revenue and Grants 816,500 816,500 888,208 71,708 

Charges for Services 180,114 180,114 207,279 27,165 

Fines and Forfeitures 10,211 10,211 21,824 11,613 

Cable Franchise Fees 121,781 121,781 141,783 20,002 

Other Miscellaneous Income 5,000 5,000 25,077 20,077 

Interest Revenue 10,558 10,558 44,221 33,663 

   Total Revenues 1,574,216 1,574,216 1,803,276 229,060 

Expenditures

General Government

Township Board 109,779 119,779 104,173 15,606 

Supervisor 48,818 48,818 43,582 5,236 

Clerk 149,971 159,971 154,862 5,109 

Elections 36,835 36,835 32,933 3,902 

Treasurer 128,530 128,530 119,498 9,032 

Assessing 94,875 94,875 89,178 5,697 

Board of Review 2,200 2,200 1,563 637 

Building and Grounds 34,981 38,981 35,991 2,990 

Cemeteries 10,410 10,410 4,268 6,142 

Other General Government 21,843 21,843 11,331 10,512 

Ordinance Enforcement/Building Inspections 26,700 26,700 21,573 5,127 

Total General Government             664,942             688,942             618,952               69,990 

Public Works

General Public Works 393,200 393,200 242,879 150,321 

Street Lighting 2,546 2,546 2,237 309 

Total Public Works             395,746             395,746             245,116             150,630 

Health and Welfare

Seniors 4,600 4,600 4,400 200 

Community and Economic Development

Planning 93,844 93,844 71,782 22,062 

Zoning 51,386 51,386 32,414 18,972 

Total Community and Economic Development             145,230             145,230             104,196               41,034 

Culture

Public Education Grant 2,600 3,500 3,031 469 

Other 150,417 150,417 122,852 27,565 

Capital Outlay 4,750 24,750 33,593 (8,843)

   Total Expenditures 1,368,285 1,413,185 1,132,140 281,045 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

   Over Expenditures 205,931 161,031 671,136 510,105 

   Net Change in Fund Balance 205,931 161,031 671,136 510,105 

Fund Balance at Beginning of Period 6,904,244 6,904,244 6,904,244 --

Fund Balance at End of Period $ 7,110,175 $ 7,065,275 $ 7,575,380 $ 510,105 

Township of Tyrone
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

General Fund
For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

Budgeted Amounts
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Variance

Positive

(Negative)

Original Final Actual Final to Actual

Revenues

Charges for Services $ 40,000 $ 40,000 $ 50,615 $ 10,615 

Other Revenue - Special Assessments 600,800 600,800 602,650 1,850 

Interest Revenue 200 200 11,028 10,828 

   Total Revenues 641,000 641,000 664,293 23,293 

Expenditures

Public Safety 585,158 655,158 595,402 59,756

   Total Expenditures 585,158 655,158 595,402 59,756 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

   Over Expenditures 55,842 (14,158) 68,891 83,049 

   Net Change in Fund Balance 55,842 (14,158) 68,891 83,049 

Fund Balance at Beginning of Period 798,500 798,500 798,500 --

Fund Balance at End of Period $ 854,342 $ 784,342 $ 867,391 $ 83,049 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Public Safety

For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

Budgeted Amounts

Township of Tyrone
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ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ -- $ 3,418 $ 796 $ 27,921 $ 15,788 $ 8,141 $ 7,338 $ 117,954 

Investments -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 185,651 

Receivables -- 10 -- 298 1,260 185 -- 13,779 

Prepaid Items -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

Special Assessment Receivables -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

   Total Assets $ -- $ 3,428 $ 796 $ 28,219 $ 17,048 $ 8,326 $ 7,338 $ 317,384 

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable $ -- $ 108 $ 14 $ -- $ 115 $ -- $ -- $ --

   Total Liabilities -- 108 14 -- 115 -- -- --

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Assessments Levied for a Subsequent Period -- 520 100 18,029 6,510 2,960 -- --

Unavailable Revenue -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

   Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources -- 628 114 18,029 6,625 2,960 -- --

FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

Restricted -- 2,800 682 10,190 10,423 5,366 7,338 317,384 

Unassigned -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

   Total Fund Balance -- 2,800 682 10,190 10,423 5,366 7,338 317,384 

   Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balance $ -- $ 3,428 $ 796 $ 28,219 $ 17,048 $ 8,326 $ 7,338 $ 317,384 

Public Education 

Grant

Township of Tyrone

Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

March 31, 2019

Special Revenue

Liquor Law 

Enforcement

Jayne Hill Street 

Lighting

Walnut Shores 

Street Lighting

Jayne Hill Waste 

Removal

Parkin Lane 

Snow Removal Great Oaks Drive Right of Way
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ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ -- $ 5,588 $ 5,077 $ 15,673 $ 319,553 $ 164,175 $ 14,868 $ 706,290 

Investments -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 185,651 

Receivables -- -- -- 165 6,677 6,570 -- 28,944 

Prepaid Items -- -- 1,599 -- -- -- -- 1,599 

Special Assessment Receivables -- -- -- -- 869,057 254,376 -- 1,123,433 

   Total Assets $ -- $ 5,588 $ 6,676 $ 15,838 $ 1,195,287 $ 425,121 $ 14,868 $ 2,045,917 

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ 237 

   Total Liabilities -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 237 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Assessments Levied for a Subsequent Period -- 4,617 6,601 14,025 -- -- 14,868               68,230 

Unavailable Revenue -- -- -- -- 869,057 254,376 --          1,123,433 

   Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources -- 4,617 6,601 14,025 869,057 254,376 14,868 1,191,900

FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable -- -- 1,599 -- -- -- -- 1,599 

Restricted -- 971 -- 1,813 326,230 170,745 -- 853,942 

Unassigned -- -- (1,524) -- -- -- -- (1,524)

   Total Fund Balance -- 971 75 1,813 326,230 170,745 -- 854,017 

   Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balance $ -- $ 5,588 $ 6,676 $ 15,838 $ 1,195,287 $ 425,121 $ 14,868 $ 2,045,917 

Township of Tyrone
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

March 31, 2019

Debt Service Capital Projects

Total Nonmajor 

Governmental 

Funds

Laurel Springs 

Road 

Improvement

Lake Tyrone 

Grant

Shannon Glen 

Rubbish Removal

Apple Orchard 

Rubbish Removal

Silver Lakes 

Estates Waste 

Removal

Lake Shannon 

Road 

Improvement

Parkin Lane 

Road 

Improvement 

Debt
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Revenues

Licenses and Permits $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ --

State Revenue 2,261 -- -- -- -- -- 9,953 --

Special Assessments -- 520 100 18,029 6,510 2,960 -- --

Cable Franchise Fees -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 56,713 

Interest -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 2,529 

   Total Revenues 2,261 520 100 18,029 6,510 2,960 9,953 59,242 

Expenditures

Public Safety 2,261 -- -- -- -- -- -- --

Public Works -- 1,261 158 17,977 10,182 2,500 12,500 --

Culture -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 33,688 

Debt Service - Interest -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

Debt Service - Principal -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

   Total Expenditures 2,261 1,261 158 17,977 10,182 2,500 12,500 33,688 

   Excess of Revenues Over

      (Under) Expenditures -- (741) (58) 52 (3,672) 460 (2,547) 25,554 

   Net Change in Fund Balance -- (741) (58) 52 (3,672) 460 (2,547) 25,554 

Fund Balance at Beginning of Period -- 3,541 740 10,138 14,095 4,906 9,885 291,830 

Fund Balance at End of Period $ -- $ 2,800 $ 682 $ 10,190 $ 10,423 $ 5,366 $ 7,338 $ 317,384 

Public Education 

Grant

Township of Tyrone
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

Special Revenue

Liquor Law 

Enforcement

Jayne Hill Street 

Lighting

Walnut Shores 

Street Lighting

Jayne Hill Waste 

Removal

Parkin Lane 

Snow Removal Great Oaks Drive Right of Way
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Revenues

Licenses and Permits $ -- $ 14 $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ 14 

State Revenue -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 12,214 

Special Assessments -- 4,316 8,446 16,770 341,164 31,536 -- 430,351 

Cable Franchise Fees -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 56,713 

Interest -- -- -- -- 471 2,430 -- 5,430 

   Total Revenues -- 4,330 8,446 16,770 341,635 33,966 -- 504,722 

Expenditures

Public Safety -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 2,261 

Public Works 9,550 3,771 8,371 14,957 -- -- -- 81,227 

Culture -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 33,688 

Debt Service - Interest -- -- -- -- 15,405 17,971 -- 33,376 

Debt Service - Principal -- -- -- -- -- 20,000 -- 20,000 

   Total Expenditures 9,550 3,771 8,371 14,957 15,405 37,971 -- 170,552 

   Excess of Revenues Over

      (Under) Expenditures (9,550) 559 75 1,813 326,230 (4,005) -- 334,170 

   Net Change in Fund Balance (9,550) 559 75 1,813 326,230 (4,005) -- 334,170 

Fund Balance at Beginning of Period 9,550 412 -- -- -- 174,750 -- 519,847 

Fund Balance at End of Period $ -- $ 971 $ 75 $ 1,813 $ 326,230 $ 170,745 $ -- $ 854,017 

Township of Tyrone
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

Debt Service Capital Projects

Total Nonmajor 

Governmental 

Funds

Laurel Springs 

Road 

Improvement

Lake Tyrone 

Grant

Shannon Glen 

Rubbish Removal

Apple Orchard 

Rubbish Removal

Silver Lakes 

Estates Waste 

Removal

Lake Shannon 

Road 

Improvement

Parkin Lane 

Road 

Improvement 

Debt
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ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,419,100 $ 71,427 $ 411,668 $ 5,934 $ 704,084 $ 1,309,377 $ 4,921,590 

Receivables 193,193 -- -- -- -- -- 193,193 

Prepaid Items 9,237 -- -- -- -- -- 9,237 

Due from Agency Fund 4,071 -- -- -- -- -- 4,071 

Due from Other Funds 10,400 -- -- -- -- -- 10,400 

Land Contracts Receivable -- -- -- -- -- 108,812 108,812 

Advances to Other Funds 2,550,000 -- -- -- -- -- 2,550,000 

   Total Assets $ 5,186,001 $ 71,427 $ 411,668 $ 5,934 $ 704,084 $ 1,418,189 $ 7,797,303 

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable $ 17,031 $ -- $ 12,006 $ -- $ -- $ -- $ 29,037 

Accrued Liabilities and Other 6,473 -- -- -- -- -- 6,473 

Due to Other Funds 240 -- -- -- -- -- 240 

   Total Liabilities 23,744 -- 12,006 -- -- -- 35,750 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable Revenue -- -- -- -- -- 108,812 108,812 

   Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 23,744 -- 12,006 -- -- 108,812 144,562 

FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable 2,559,237 -- -- -- -- -- 2,559,237 

Committed 500,000 -- -- -- -- -- 500,000

Assigned -- 71,427 399,662 5,934 704,084 1,309,377 2,490,484 

Unassigned 2,103,020 -- -- -- -- -- 2,103,020

   Total Fund Balance 5,162,257 71,427 399,662 5,934 704,084 1,309,377 7,652,741 

   Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balance $ 5,186,001 $ 71,427 $ 411,668 $ 5,934 $ 704,084 $ 1,418,189 $ 7,797,303 

Public 

Improvement 

Road

Township 

Improvement 

Revolving

Township of Tyrone
General Fund Combining Balance Sheet

All Funds Treated as General
March 31, 2019

Total General 

FundsGeneral Technology

Public 

Improvement 

Building & Site

Park and 

Recreation
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Revenues

Property Taxes $ 445,624 $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ 445,624 

Licenses and Permits 29,260 -- -- -- -- -- 29,260 

State Revenue 888,208 -- -- -- -- -- 888,208 

Charges for Services 207,279 -- -- -- -- -- 207,279 

Fines and Forfeitures 21,824 -- -- -- -- -- 21,824 

Cable Franchise Fees 141,783 -- -- -- -- -- 141,783 

Other Miscellaneous Income 8,241 -- -- -- -- 16,836 25,077 

Interest 34,276 -- -- -- 5,733 4,212 44,221 

   Total Revenues 1,776,495 -- -- -- 5,733 21,048 1,803,276 

Expenditures

General Government 618,952 -- -- -- -- -- 618,952 

Public Works 8,743 -- -- -- 236,373 -- 245,116 

Health and Welfare 4,400 -- -- -- -- -- 4,400 

Community and Economic Development 104,196 -- -- -- -- -- 104,196 

Culture 3,031 -- -- -- -- -- 3,031 

Other Functions 122,852 -- -- -- -- -- 122,852 

Capital Outlay 7,121 -- 26,472 -- -- -- 33,593 

   Total Expenditures 869,295 -- 26,472 -- 236,373 -- 1,132,140 

   Excess of Revenues Over

      (Under) Expenditures 907,200 -- (26,472) -- (230,640) 21,048 671,136 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In -- -- 97,500 -- 280,000 97,500 --

Transfers Out (475,000) -- -- -- -- -- --

   Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (475,000) -- 97,500 -- 280,000 97,500 --

   Net Change in Fund Balance 432,200 -- 71,028 -- 49,360 118,548 671,136 

Fund Balance at Beginning of Period 4,730,057 71,427 328,634 5,934 654,724 1,190,829 6,981,605 

Fund Balance at End of Period $ 5,162,257 $ 71,427 $ 399,662 $ 5,934 $ 704,084 $ 1,309,377 $ 7,652,741 
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Gabridge & Company, PLC 

3940 Peninsular Dr SE, Suite 200 
Grand Rapids, MI  49546 

Tel:  616-538-7100 
Fax:  616-538-2441 

gabridgeco.com  
 
 

 

 

To the Township Board 

Tyrone Township, Livingston County, Michigan 

 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 

activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of 

Tyrone (the “Township”) for the year ended March 31, 2019. Professional standards require that 

we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing 

standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We 

have communicated such information in our letter to you dated February 8, 2019. Professional 

standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

 

Significant Audit Findings 

 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 

significant accounting policies used by the Township are described in Note 1 to the financial 

statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was 

not changed during March 31, 2019. We noted no transactions entered into by Township of Tyrone 

during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant 

transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 

are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 

assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 

of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 

affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting 

the Township’s financial statements was: 

 

 Management’s estimate of the useful lives of depreciable capital assets is based on the 

length of time it is believed that those assets will provide some economic benefit in the 

future. 

 

We evaluated key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate in determining that it is 

reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 

completing our audit. 
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 

during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate 

level of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the 

misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, 

either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

Disagreements with Management 

 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, 

or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the 

financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 

arose during the course of our audit. 

 

Management Representations 

 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 

representation letter dated August 5, 2019. 

 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 

accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation 

involves application of an accounting principle to the Township’s financial statements or a 

determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 

professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 

consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 

accountants. 

 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 

auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Township’s auditors. 

However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our 

responses were not a condition to our retention. 

 

Other Matters 

 

We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis and the budgetary 

comparison schedules, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the 

basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the 

methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 

management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 

obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not 

express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 
 

- 2 -



 

We were engaged to report on combining and individual fund financial statements, which 

accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary 

information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and 

methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not 

changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our 

audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to 

the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 

statements themselves. 

 

Restriction on Use 

 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Township Board and management of the 

Township and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified 

parties. 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

 
Gabridge & Company, PLC 

Grand Rapids, MI 

August 5, 2019 
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NEW BUSINESS #2 



 

Tyrone Township Planning Commission 
10408 Center Road     Fenton, MI  48430-9439    (810) 629-8631 

Mark Meisel, Chairman     Kurt Schulze, Vice Chair     David Wardin, Secretary     Richard Erickson     Perry Green     Bill Wood 

 

August 29, 2019 
 
Township Board 
Tyrone Township 
10408 Center Road 
Fenton, MI  48430-9439 
 
 
 
Subject:  Agenda Request – Gruber Land Division – Amended Recommendation 
 
 
Dear Township Board Members: 
 
During our meeting on August 13, 2019, Dave Wardin moved to recommend Township Board approval of the Gruber 
land division request conditional upon the following: 

1. Changing the lot widths for parcels 2 & 3 at the front yard setback to be not less than 130 feet to comply with 
our zoning ordinance, updating the legal descriptions, and providing an updated drawing; 

2. Amending the shared private driveway maintenance agreement consistent with item 1; and 
3. The Planning Commission waives the 66 foot shared private driveway width requirement because the shared 

private driveway being created can never be developed to result in its use as a private road.  
  Kurt Schulze supported the motion.  The motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

 
Parcel 1 as proposed remains nonconforming, however the ZBA granted a minimum area variance during a duly noticed 
meeting on 6/10/2019.  The remaining parcels being created will comply with our zoning ordinance and land division 
ordinance requirements once the above conditions are fulfilled.   
 
Upon receipt of an amended drawing with amended legal descriptions, along with a revised shared private driveway 
maintenance agreement satisfying the conditions set forth above, the Planning Commission recommends Township 
Board approval of the Gruber land division request. 
 
Despite continued communication with the applicant during the last several weeks the latest revised drawing provided 
(attached) dated 8/28/2019 still has insufficient land area for proposed Parcel 2 (minimum 1.0 acre required, 0.96 acre 
provided when the 33 foot road right of way is subtracted).  The Planning Commission recommends the Township Board 
require the applicant to comply with our Land Division and Zoning Ordinances and reconfigure Parcels 2 and 3 to result 
in the required minimum 1.0 acre land area for each proposed parcel as required.      
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Tyrone Township Planning Commission 

Mark Meisel 
Chairman 







 

   

 
April 16, 2019 
 
Planning Commission 
Tyrone Township 
10408 Center Road 
Fenton, MI 48430 
 
Subject:  Gruber Land Division and Proposed Shared Private Driveway 

Application received on April 2, 2019 and survey drawing dated 3-27-19 
 

Dear Commissioners: 
 
The owner and applicant, Timothy Gruber, through his authorized agent, Brent F. Shaltz, of Delta Professional 
Services, has proposed a land division of Parcel 4704-04-100-029, located at the west side of Bennett Lake Road 
and southeast of Marl Lake.  The existing parcel contains approximately 10 acres of land (exclusive of submerged 
lands) and is zoned Single-Family Residential (R-1) District. The applicant would like to divide it into three new 
parcels, plus a remainder parcel, of, nominally, 0.83, 1.05, 1.51, and 6.61 acres, exclusive of submerged lands. 
 
It is unclear if the subject property represents a parent parcel or, if not, whether splits are remaining.   This should 
be confirmed.  
 
We have reviewed the site plan application in accordance with the Township’s Land Division ordinance, the LDA, 
the regulations of the R-1 District, and sound planning and zoning principles.  We offer the following comments for 
your consideration. 
 

Land Division General Requirements 
The Tyrone Township Land Division Ordinance, Section 17.254, lists required application information for land 
divisions. 
 
Section 4.A.1. Proof of Ownership.   
Township assessing records list Timothy and Kimberly Gruber as the property owners.   
 
Section 4.A.2-5. Scaled Site Drawings with Dimensions, Property Lines, and Legal Descriptions.   
Scaled and dimensioned plans have been provided for the existing and proposed 
conditions.  Each proposed parcel has a separate legal description.  
 

Section 4.A.6. Existing Structures and Easements.   
The surveys depict and existing house located on proposed Parcel 2.  There is an 
existing, semi-circular drive, portions of which are proposed to remain on Parcels 
1 and 2.  The southern portion of this drive is proposed to be incorporated into a 
shared drive that would serve Parcels 2 and 3.   
 
Section 4.A.7.  Wetlands and Natural Features.   
The survey does not call out any wetlands, nor has a wetland determination for 
the parcel been provided, though satellite imagery suggests that there are wetlands, which would likely be 



 

Tyrone Township · Gruber Land Division 2 
April 16, 2019 

regulated on the site.  In our opinion, wetlands should be located and shown on the drawing.  The site appears to 
include substantial woodlands, though these are also not identified.  Topographic information has been provided.  
The site slopes steeply toward the lake along the road frontage, then becomes very flat 
 

               
            Source: Google Earth 2018. 

 
Section 4.A.8.  Open Space.   
The Township recently amended its Zoning Ordinance to remove the specific requirement for dedicated open 
space that was contained in Section 20.02.AA thereof.  This section of the Land Division Ordinance still requires 
an application to detail the amount and location of open space to be provided, if any.  Dedicated open space is 
not provided.  
 
Sections 4.A.9, 4.A.10, and 4.A.11. Proposed Access, Abutting Roads, and Easements. 
The plan shows the northern part of the current drive serving both proposed Parcels 1 and 2, and the southern 
portion being modified to serve proposed Parcels 2 and 3.  However, the northern shared driveway is not 
identified as such.  This should be clarified.  A new driveway location is also depicted for the remainder parcel.  A 
site distance review by the LCRC was provided.  Due to site distance issues, proposed Parcel 3 was not 
approved for its own drive.  The remainder parcel also was not approved, and modifications and neighbor 
consent, as described in the review, would be required for that parcel to be accessible. 
 
Section 4.A.12 and 4.A.13. Drainage and Contours.  
The applicant has provided a topographic information.  The site drains away from the road but appears to become 
flat and poorly drained along the westerly portion of the parent site. 
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Standards for Approval (Section 17.255) 
 
Zoning District Dimensional Requirements.   
The R-1 District requires a lot width of 130 feet (at the street and the water’s edge) and a lot area of 1.00 acre.   
The width at the water frontage shall be measured along a straight line between the points where the ordinary 
high-water mark intersects with the side lot lines. The survey does not identify the ordinary high-water mark or 
follow this methodology.  The proposed lots all appear to have a width of at least 130 feet at the road.  The area 
of the proposed parcels, upland and in total, are as follows: 
 

 
 
Proposed Parcel 1 does not appear to have sufficient upland area.  We are advised that the Township Attorney 
takes the position that the submerged land under a navigable lake is not property included lot area calculations. 
 
Tax Status.  
It appears that 2018 property taxes for the parent parcel were recently paid. 
 
Depth to Width Ratio.   
The parcels appear to comply with the 4:1 depth-to-width ratio.   

 
Land Division Comments and Recommendation 
Based on our comments herein, we find that the proposed land division of Parcel 4704-04-100-029 does not 
comply the dimensional requirements of the R-1 District because the area of proposed Parcel 1 is less than the 
minimum required.  The proposed shared drives are discussed below. 

 

Create New Shared Private Driveway 
The plan proposes a new private shared driveway for Parcels 2 and 3. It also appears that a shared drive is 
intended for proposed Parcels 1 and 2, though it is not identified as such.  Shared private driveways must meet 
the requirements and standards of Sections 24.05 and 24.06 of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 

Shared Private Driveway Approval Requirements (Section 24.05) 
                          
Sight Distance.  As discussed above, the Livingston County Road Commission approved the Land Split/ Sight 
Distance Review for the proposed driveway locations on Parcels 1 and 2, which are existing, though only the 
location on Parcel 2 was identified as a shared drive.   
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Maintenance Agreement.   
An easement maintenance agreement is required by Section 24.05(B) but has not been submitted.  
 
Public Hearing. 
A public hearing is not required for the Parcel 2 shared private drive as the proposed shared driveway is more 
than fifty (50) feet from the property line of any adjacent property that is not served by the drive.   
 

Shared Private Driveway Design Standards (Section 24.06) 

Shared private driveways or access easements shall meet all design and construction requirements of Section 
24.06 of this Article and all applicable Livingston County Road Commission requirements. 
 
Driveway Design. 
No design data has been provided.   
 
Drainage.  
No drainage information has been provided. 
 
Sight distance. 
See the discussion above. 
 
Minimum Easement Width. 
The proposed shared driveway easement width is not identified.  
 
Minimum Finished Surface Width. 
No design information has been provided. 
 
Shared Private Driveway Construction Materials. 
No design information has been provided. 
 
Maximum Length and Units. 
It appears that each driveway would serve two units and that neither would exceed the maximum length.  
 
Turnarounds. 
No turnaround is required as the proposed driveways do not serve more than three (3) units. 
 
Intersection Design Standards. 
No design information has been provided. 
 
Intersection Offsets from Streets. 
It appears the proposed driveway locations are not in proximity to any existing streets. 
 
Vertical Clearance. 
The ordinance requires fifteen (15) feet of vertical clearance over the private road to ensure adequate access by 
emergency vehicles. No design information has been provided. 
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Signs.  
Not applicable for a shared drive. 
 

Shared Private Driveway Comments 
The plan contains inadequate information to review the proposed shared private driveways, as discussed above. 
The applicant should review Section 24.05(J) of the Zoning Ordinance and insure that all required information is 
submitted for each shared private driveway that is proposed. 

 
We look forward to discussing this information with you.  Please let us know if there are questions or concerns 
regarding the statements in this review.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
McKENNA 
 

       
Gregory Elliott, AICP      
Principal Planner       
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6/10/19 ZBA Motions 

 

Appeal #1 - Gruber 

Motion to grant the variance request by Timothy and Kimberly Gruber for a minimum site area variance for a 

proposed new parcel (as part of a land division application), located at 10201 Bennett Lake Road in Fenton, 

Michigan 48430, Parcel ID: 4704-04-100-029, for the following findings of fact: 

 

Unreasonable Burden:  The proposed land division to create Parcel 1 involves a parcel of land which includes a 

large area of submerged bottomlands of Marl Lake.  Proposed Parcel 1 is also constrained by existing 

development on what is proposed to be Parcel 2.  The appellant has agreed to remove an existing accessory 

structure to minimize the conforming size of Parcel 2 such that the area of proposed Parcel 1 is maximized.  

Parcel 1 can be no larger given the existing development on proposed Parcel 2.  Proposed Parcel 1 would be 

0.83 acre of unsubmerged land, substantially similar to the two developed parcels immediately north, those 

being 0.89+/- and 0.78+/- acre respectively.  The developmental options are therefore to allow proposed Parcel 

1 at 0.83 acre, else proposed Parcels 1 and 2 would need to be a single lot of 1.7+ acres, which is double the size 

of the parcels immediately to the north.  While the smaller lot size is not desired, it is consistent with existing 

adjacent development, and would still provide a reasonable transition zone to the proposed larger conforming 

lots to the south.   

 

Substantial Justice: The appellant has agreed to remove an existing accessory structure to minimize the 

conforming size of Parcel 2 such that the area of proposed Parcel 1 is maximized.  Parcel 1 can be no larger 

given the existing development on proposed Parcel 2.  Proposed Parcel 1 would be 0.83 acre of unsubmerged 

land, substantially similar to the two developed parcels immediately north, those being 0.89+/- and 0.78+/- acre 

respectively.  While the smaller lot size is not desired, it is consistent with existing adjacent development, and 

would still provide a reasonable transition zone to the proposed larger conforming lots to the south.  A written 

objection was received, however the concerns expressed (lot areas, driveway locations) are developmental 

standards and agency approvals the appellant must comply with to develop the proposed parcel.  The neighbor 

to the north was in favor of the variance.  

 

Minimum Variance Required:  It is the opinion of the ZBA the variance being granted represents the minimum 

variance required to result in reasonable coexistence with the adjacent neighbors, and to reasonably develop 

proposed Parcel 1.   

 

Extraordinary Circumstances:  Proposed Parcel 1 is constrained by existing development on what is proposed to 

be Parcel 2.  The appellant has agreed to remove an existing accessory structure to minimize the conforming 

size of Parcel 2 such that the area of proposed Parcel 1 is maximized.  Parcel 1 can be no larger given the 

existing development on proposed Parcel 2.  Proposed Parcel 1 would be 0.83 acre of unsubmerged land, 

substantially similar to the two developed parcels immediately north, those being 0.89+/- and 0.78+/- acre 

respectively.  The developmental options are therefore to allow Proposed Parcel 1 at 0.83 acre, else proposed 

Parcels 1 and 2 would need to be a single lot of 1.7+ acres, which is double the size of the parcels immediately 

to the north.  While the smaller lot size is not desired, it is consistent with existing adjacent development, and 

would still provide a reasonable transition zone to the proposed larger conforming lots to the south.      

 

Health and Safety:  Granting this variance does not alter or negatively impact the satisfactory health and safety 

of the immediate area, however it is noted the Livingston County Road Commission has limited the locations of 

driveways associated with the proposed new parcels as a result of concerns associated with sight distance.  
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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (3 year term)  
Revised September 3 ,  2019 

 
Begin: Expires: 

 

Greg Carnes 

Chairman 

9/1/09 

9/1/12 

9/1/15 

9/1/18 

8/31/12 

8/31/15 

8/31/18 

8/31/21 

Don LoVasco 

 

12/17/13 

9/1/14 

9/1/17 

 

8/31/14 

8/31/17 

8/31/20 

Mark Meisel 

Ex-officio 

9/1/11 

9/1/14 

9/1/17 

8/31/14 

8/31/17 

8/31/20 

Joe Trollman 

 

 

8/20/13 

9/1/14 

8/31/16 

9/3/19 

 

 

  8/31/14 

8/31/16 

8/31/19 

8/31/22 

 

 

 

Jon Ward 

 

 

9/1/14 

9/1/15 

9/5/17 

9/3/19 

8/31/15 

8/31/18 

8/31/19 

8/31/22 

 

Don Bunka 

Alternate 

 

9/1/17 8/31/20 

 

Dan Stickel 

Alternate 

 

6/18/19 8/31/22 
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NEW BUSINESS #5 



Proposed Budget Amendments by Fund for Fiscal Year 2019/2020

Fund Department Account No. Account Name Current Budget

Current Balance as 

of 8/21/19

Suggested 

Amendment

IRISH HILLS ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND 401-000.000-672.000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE -$                     -$                          -$                          

IRISH HILLS ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND 401-000.000-664.000 INTEREST & DIVIDEND EARNINGS -$                     (45.81)$                    (100.00)$                  

IRISH HILLS ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND 401-000.000-672.200 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT PAYOFF -$                     (66,708.00)$             (66,708.00)$             

IRISH HILLS ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND 401-000.000-672.664 INTEREST EARNED ON PAYOFFS -$                     -$                          -$                          

IRISH HILLS ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND 401-000.000-696.000 BOND PROCEEDS (AT FACE VALUE) -$                     (785,000.00)$           (785,000.00)$           

IRISH HILLS ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND 401-446.000-730.000 POSTAGE -$                     66.43$                      150.00$                   

IRISH HILLS ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND 401-446.000-806.000 CONSULTANTS -$                     12,900.00$              12,900.00$              

IRISH HILLS ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND 401-446.000-809.000 ENGINEERING -$                     25,623.00$              60,000.00$              

IRISH HILLS ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND 401-446.000-818.000 LEGAL FEES -$                     28,756.50$              28,757.00$              

IRISH HILLS ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND 401-446.000-827.001 ROAD -$                     -$                          724,630.00$            

IRISH HILLS ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND 401-446.000-900.000 PRINTING & PUBLISHING -$                     3,436.20$                5,000.00$                

IRISH HILLS ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND 401-446.000-955.000 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE -$                     -$                          4,850.00$                

IRISH HILLS ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND 401-446.000-994.000 BOND ISSUANCE COSTS -$                     157.00$                   200.00$                   

IRISH HILLS ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUND 401-446.000-995.000 BOND INTEREST EXPENSE -$                     -$                          8,513.00$                



NEW BUSINESS #6 







NEW BUSINESS #7,8,9 
 
 

No documents attached. 


